Public Document Pack

East g Jeff Hughes
Herts Ste enage Head of Democratic and
W BOROUGH COUNCcIL Legal Support Services

MEETING EAST HERTS COUNCIL AND STEVENAGE

BOROUGH COUNCIL JOINT REVENUES AND
BENEFITS COMMITTEE

VENUE : SHIMKENT ROOM, DANESHILL HOUSE,
DANESTRETE, STEVENAGE, SG1 1HN

DATE : MONDAY 13TH OCTOBER 2014

TIME : 6.00 PM

MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE:

EAST HERTS COUNCIL:

Councillor Michael Tindale (Chairman).
Councillors: L Haysey and J Thornton.

Substitutes: G McAndrew.

(Note: Substitution arrangements must be notified by the absent Member
to Democratic Services 24 hours before the meeting).

STEVENAGE BOROUGH COUNCIL:

Councillors: Mrs J Lloyd (Vice-Chairman), J Thomas and A Webb

Substitutes: R Raynor.

CONTACT OFFICER: Peter Mannings
01279 502174
E-mail: peter.mannings@eastherts.gov.uk

This agenda has been printed using 100% recycled paper

www.eastherts.gov.uk



DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS

A Member, present at a meeting of the Authority, or any committee,
sub-committee, joint committee or joint sub-committee of the
Authority, with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) in any matter to
be considered or being considered at a meeting:

o must not participate in any discussion of the matter at the
meeting;

o must not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the
meeting;

o must disclose the interest to the meeting, whether registered or
not, subject to the provisions of section 32 of the Localism Act
2011;

o if the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a
pending notification, must notify the Monitoring Officer of the
interest within 28 days;

o must leave the room while any discussion or voting takes place.

A DPIl is an interest of a Member or their partner (which means
spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they were
civil partners) within the descriptions as defined in the Localism Act
2011.

The Authority may grant a Member dispensation, but only in limited
circumstances, to enable him/her to participate and vote on a matter
in which they have a DPI.

It is a criminal offence to:

o fail to disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest at a meeting if it
is not on the register,;

o fail to notify the Monitoring Officer, within 28 days, of a DPI that
is not on the register that a Member disclosed to a meeting;

o participate in any discussion or vote on a matter in which a
Member has a DPI;

o knowingly or recklessly provide information that is false or
misleading in notifying the Monitoring Officer of a DPI or in
disclosing such interest to a meeting.



(Note: The criminal penalties available to a court are to impose a
fine not exceeding level 5 on the standard scale and
disqualification from being a councillor for up to 5 years.)

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings

Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its
Committees using whatever, non-disruptive, methods you
think are suitable, which may include social media of any kind,
such as tweeting, blogging or Facebook. However, oral
reporting or commentary is prohibited. If you have any
questions about this please contact Democratic Services
(members of the press should contact the Press Office).
Please note that the Chairman of the meeting has the
discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons,
including disruption caused by the filming or the nature of the
business being conducted. Anyone filming a meeting is asked
to focus only on those actively participating, but please also be
aware that you may be filmed whilst attending a council
meeting and that attendance at the meeting signifies your
agreement to this.




AGENDA

1.

Apologies for Absence and Declarations of Interest

Minutes — 30 June 2014 (Pages 5 — 8).

Quarterly Update (Pages 9 — 20).

Urgent Part 1 Business

To consider any Part 1 Business accepted by the Chair as urgent.

Exclusion of Press and Public

To consider the following motions:

1. That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely
disclosure of exempt information as described in paragraphs 1-7 of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act as amended by SI2006 No.88.

2. That Members consider the reasons for the following reports (if any)
being in Part 2 and determine whether or not maintaining the
exemption from disclosure of the information contained therein
outweighs the public interest in disclosure.

Urgent Part 2 Business

To consider any Part 2 Business accepted by the Chair as urgent.



Agenda ltem 2
Item: 2
JOINT REVENUES AND BENEFITS EXECUTIVE
MINUTES
Date: Monday 30 June 2014

Time: 6.00 g.m.
Place: Shimkent Room, Daneshill House, Stevenage

Present: Stevenage Borough Councillors: Mrs J Lioyd, J Thomas

and A Webb.

East Herts Councillors: L Haysey, and J Thornton.

In Attendance: S Crudgington (Strategic Director (Resources) SBC),

A Taylor (Director of Internal Services — East Herts
Council) and S Tarran (Head of Revenues and Benefits).

Start/End Time: Start Time: 6.00 p.m.

1.

End Time: 6.55 p.m.

APPOINTMENT OF A CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN

The Committee Clerk opened the meeting and nominations were requested
for the appointment of the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Joint
Revenues and Benefits Committee for the 2014 / 2015 Municipal Year.

It was duly proposed and seconded that Councillor M Tindale be appointed
as Chairman for the 2014 / 2015 Municipal Year.

There being no other nominations a vote was taken and it was RESOLVED
that Councillor M Tindale be appointed as Chairman of the Joint Revenues
and Benefits Committee for the 2014 / 2015 Municipal Year.

As Councillor Tindale had given his apologies for the meeting it was
proposed, seconded and RESOLVED that Councillor L Haysey be
appointed as Chairman for the meeting.

It was duly proposed and seconded that Councillor Mrs J Lloyd be
appointed as Vice Chairman for the 2014 / 2015 Municipal Year.

There being no other nominations a vote was taken and it was RESOLVED
that Councillor Mrs J Lioyd be appointed as Vice Chairman of the Joint
Revenues and Benefits Committee for the Municipal Year 2014 / 2015.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

An apology for absence was received from Councillor M Tindale.

Page 5



There were no declarations of interest.
3. MINUTES - 28 JANUARY 2014

It was RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting of held on 28 January
2014 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

4. QUARTERLY UPDATE

The Committee received a report detailing the current position in the
following areas:

1. Performance Monitoring
2. Budget Outturn 2013/2014
3. Other Challenges

The Committee was advised that the shared service was currently under
review with Directors of both authorities involved.

The Committee was further advised that the performance of the service
should be judged against a backdrop of an increasing number of claimant
cases and an increasing workload within those cases as the service was
operating at a level 54.7% higher than when originally scoped.

In reply to a number of questions relating to Discretionary Housing
Payments (DHP) the Committee was advised that as there were a high
number of applicants reapplying for this benefit a decision had been taken
to review the cases of those not reapplying to determine if they were
missing out on potential benefits. Demand for DHP had increased in
Stevenage and it was noted that there had been a proactive working
arrangement between the Housing Service in Stevenage and the
Revenues and Benefits Team to identify those most in need.

The Committee was reminded that DHP was not a ‘proxy’ for benefits
payments and that many claims had been turned down because the
claimant was already receiving the maximum allowance. A review of other
refused claims had revealed no underlying trends in the reason for refusal.,
It was noted that the claimant had no right of appeal for a refused claim but
that a second officer decision on the case could be provided should the
claimant request it. To date very few had taken up that option.

The issues around the localisation of Business Rates and the changes to
collection arrangements were discussed and the Committee was advised
that both Councils had replied in strong terms to a Central Government
consultation and had highlighted the issues that local authorities faced
when dealing with businesses that were skilled in reducing their tax
burdens. Appeals by businesses tied up Council resources and led to
uncertainty about future income levels.

The Committee was further advised that the administrative burden for a raft

Page 6 2



of discretionary business rate reliefs introduced by the Government was
currently the responsibility of the Local Authority.

The Committee was advised of the intention of the Department of Work and
Pensions (DWP) to introduce a Single Fraud Investigation Service into
Stevenage and East Herts from 1 May 2015. Officers were currently

considering their options and a report would be presented to the Executive
at both Councils in late Autumn.

It was RESOLVED that the report be received and noted.
4. URGENT PART | BUSINESS
None.
5. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
Not required.
PART il
6. URGENT PART Il BUSINESS

None.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Agenda jtem 3
Item: 3
EAST HERTS COUNCIL

COMMITTEE — DATE 13 October 2014

East Herts Council and Stevenage Borough Council Joint Revenues and
Benefits Committee

REPORT BY Head of Revenues and Benefits Shared Service

REPORT TITLE : Quarterly update
WARD(S) AFFECTED: ALL

Purpose/Summary of Report

* To report to committee the current position in the following areas.
o Performance reporting
o Other challenges

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR East Herts Council and Stevenage
Borough Council Joint Revenues and Benefits Committee

That:

(A) | The report be received.

1.0 Background

1.1 Since the last report to committee (June 2014) the service has
produced a re-sizing report which reviews the changes in demand
on the service and the available resources since the shared
service was scoped.

1.2 The re-sizing report will be submitted through each councils
reporting process for consideration. Once the report has been
considered by the respective Council’s senior management
boards, a special meeting of this committee will be arranged to
take members through the key proposals prior to consideration by
each Council’'s Executive”

L

Page 9



1.3 This report includes an over view of performance and future

2.0
2.1
2.1.1

& 2

2.1.3

214

2.1.5

2.1.6

2H.7

2.1.8

Page 10

challenges.

Report

Performance reporting — Benefits Workload

The workload received by the Benefits Service up to the end of
13/14 was 54.7% higher than when the shared service was
scoped.

During 14/15 the Benefit workload is fluctuating with changes in
the level of ATLAS referrals from the DWP.

In September 2014 the DWP are commencing a major project
based on a bulk data matching exercise using real time
information from HRMC.

We are to expect a significant number of referrals to investigate,
and reassess, and an increase in the level of customer error
overpayments which will need to be recovered.

RTI is HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC) new system for
collecting Pay As You Earn (PAYE) information from employers
and pensicn providers who are now required to provide HMRC
with income details immediately after each payment they make.

DWP is planning to carry out an exercise matching HMRC RTI
against data held on six social security benefits, including HB;
to identify cases where claimants have either failed to declare
or have under declared earnings and/or non-state pension.

The project is expected to run between September 2014 and
the end of the financial year; and will result in referrals being
issued to LAs where DWP has information that earnings or non-
state pension have not been correctly declared for HB
purposes.

The DWP advise “We do appreciate that you are already busy
dealing with a number of competing priorities, but want to stress

=



that this is a high profile initiative that was included in the
Autumn Statement announcement made in December 2013”

2.1.9  This initiative will identify an estimated 300,000 overpayments
nationally and out of that figure approximately 223,000 will
relate to HB only cases. The referrals generated as a result of
the data matching activity will be staggered over a number of
monthly tranches.

2.1.10 This has required software changes and it is unclear if these
costs will be met by new burdens funding.

2.1.11 The issue of the impact on subsidy has also yet to be
determined. When a ‘customer generated’ overpayment is
identified the subsidy claimable from the DWP reduces from
100% to only 40%. The ‘incentive’ is for councils to recover the
overpayment from the customer to ensure that income is not
lost. This in itself costs money, which is why 40% subsidy
rather than zero subsidy is paid in the first instance. If the
overpayment cannot be recovered the council loses both the
costs of collection and the value of the debt.

2.1.12 New burden funding will be paid, based on the number of
referrals we receive . The DWP advise that this will be £15.13
per referral; this includes £10.13 for dealing with the referral,
plus an additional £5.00 to cover the cost of debt recovery
action.

2.1.13 Council’s have only four weeks to process the RTI information
before the error is treated as “Local Authority Error and/or
Administrative Delay” . This means that to protect each Council
from a substantial subsidy loss, this work must take priority over
all other activity.

2.1.14 Benefits and Council Tax Support Caseload has reduced
slightly in the first 5 months of 14/15 for both pensioners and

working age caseloads.

2.1.15 At a recent national conference attended by the DWP it was
acknowledged that services are impacted most significantly by
the number of changes requiring processing for each claim.

6 Page 11



2.1.16  This was attributed to a number of factors including; tax credits,
zero hour contracts, and the high proportion of claimants in
multiple low paid part time work.

2.1.17 The graph below demonstrates the long term trend in caseload.

16000

14000 il R vy

12000 - — w— S C
11000 ——— —— —
10000 =
[e] o — i — —t (o] o o~ o~ 23] o ™ ™ < < <
i - — i —i Lo i - — i — —t i — — i -
B > & > B > ©6 > & > 6 > 6 > 6 > w
= [=} 3 © =1 =} [3] © > [@] [J] 3o} = O [ 7] © >
=i SRS TRl =] ASiES S-S GRSE FR RS =
2.2 Performance reporting — Revenues Workload

2.21 The workload of the Revenues teams continues to increase as
demonstrated in the level of recovery action being taken. The
table below demonstrates the number of Council Tax
reminders, final reminders, and arrangement reminders issued.

Stevenage  .12/13  13/14 ‘%increase Jisie
' Reminders 10679 16797 57.29
' Finals 2645 3475 31.38 ]
" Arrangement 1607 3360  109.09 |
sk i 14931 23632 58.27 15006

East Herts 1213  13M4 %increase 14/15 to
: : 31.8.14

' Reminders 14591 17276 18.40

L'Feﬁals 3933 4149 5.49

Arrangement 2231 2385 6.90

20755 23810 14.72 14516

—_

Page 12 ¥



2252 These are indicative of workload increases in all areas of the
Revenues service. Customer contacts are very high and often
repeated due to failure demand.

2.2.3 The full scope of the challenges are detailed in the resizing
report, but in the short term efforts are being made to address
routine customer contacts.

2.3 Discretionary Housing Payments

2.3.1 The demand for Discretionary Housing payments arising from
the changes in the welfare reforms has also risen significantly,
and has proven to be a very resource intensive work stream.

2.3§2 However the approach adopted this year, to award for longer
periods for those with the most complex needs appears to be
having a positive impact on the number of separate
applications.

~ Applications for

DHP
2013/14 485 668
" August 2014 236 deomn -

2.3.3  Atthe end of August the following DHP grant had been spent
&/or committed. Any unspent money has to be returned to the
DWP at the end of the financial year.

 Grant £ 183,788.00 £ 156,347.00
Spent/committed £ 143,586.34 £ 113,903.16
% 78% 73%

2.3.4  The graphs below shows where the DHP is being spent in
relation to cause of request during 14/15.

8 Page 13



2.3.5 The most significant area continues to be in relation to the spare
room subsidy.

2.3.6  There are a number of legal cases progressing through the
courts, which attempt to challenge the regulations. These
include issues in relation to room size, separated families
(shared custody of children), and issues of discrimination on the
grounds of disability (need for extra bedrooms) etc.

Stevenage

200
180
160
140
120
100
80
60
40
20
0
O R IR RS L T
éQ,C?) @é’\c’ \A \’Q}\% O{S\ <</+2,<° e‘}\{? o(\’\v oor\z (@)
ks & ° & f—?’b
B & ¢ 2
S SN A
Q¥ Q & &
> >
e e
East Herts
100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30 T
20
10
0
(\‘ Qo > e X S olo olo Q
«° & RS &\é& . & Q’@Q s o\’b‘\ : q‘?\ &
¥ 2 Gt el e S
> ) ‘\o'“ L &
N & £ 5
O 112 N N
QO () > >
Q@ Q & &e,
> >
e e

Page 14



24 N181 performance

2.4.1  The current performance for Benefits N181 shows a disparity,
between Councils. However as the outstanding workload
continues to be at the same date* for each Council. This is

caused by variations in the volumes of transactions at different

periods during the year.

*Work is processed in date order. Aligning each work stream
means for example that both Councils Atlas files have been
processed up to the same date.

2.4.2.  Processing indicators for this year show the following
alignment.

East Herts Stevenage

' Data period 1 5.8.14-9.9.14 | 30.7.14 -3.9.14
'New Claims = 32.63 3261
ILChanges in circumstances | 24.66 1! 22.36 L
'N181(cumulative) | 13.40 """'_"T"Héfsz

2.5 Benefits CAP

2.5.1 The Benefit cap is now running as a ‘regular’ feature of the
Benefits scheme. Customers are affected by the CAP for
various periods of time, but the number affected at any one
time remains small, although increasing.

Page 15



45
40
35
30
25
20
1S
10

w

0

~\
@’b ’\\\

3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Sed

3.6

’,»bn

® EHC
= SBC
™ ™ L) L
Y N N hY
< N % <

N o e
N X S

Other Challenges

Universal credit:

The pilots continue but very small numbers of customers are
being processed in this way. It is unclear what impact the 2015
general election will have on this project.

There has been no further information in respect of the housing
credit solution for Pensioners, since it was announced that it
was delayed until 2018/19 at the earliest.

Some experts believe that the DWP may wish to press ahead
with the roll out of direct payments to customers in the social
sector, ahead of the UC rollout. This will be a significant project
for all concerned. There has been no further information about
this in recent months.

There is still a need to consider the development of a Working
Age Council Tax Support scheme that resembles a discount
and not a means tested benefit.

Single Fraud Investigation Service

The DWP still plan to introducing SFIS. The date given for East
Herts & Stevenage is 1 May 2015.

If this goes ahead all fraud investigation of Housing Benefit etc

will have to cease. Staff will transfer to the DWP, admin subsidy
will be cut, and there will be no resources to investigate CTS or
any other service specific fraud.

Page 16 ||



3.7 Consideration is being given to the Councils response to fraud
in the light of this development.

Funding

4.1 The service continues to rely on ad hoc funding to support the
workload. This is addressed in the re-sizing report and as such
is not discussed at length here.

.U"I

Implications/Consultations

5.1 Information on any corporate issues and consultation
associated with this report can be found within Essential

Reference Paper ‘A’.

Background Papers None

Contact Members:

Contact Officer:

Joan Lloyd, Executive Member for Resources,
Stevenage Borough Council, and

Michael Tindale, Executive Member for Finance,
East Herts Council.

Su Tarran, Head of Revenues & Benefits Shared
service Contact Tel No 01279 502075

|2

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Agenda Item: 3 Appendix A
ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘A’

IMPLICATIONS/CONSULTATIONS

Contribution to
the Council’s
Corporate
Priorities/
Objectives
(delete as
appropriate):

EHC: People

This pricrity focuses on enhancing the quality of life, health
and wellbeing of individuals, families and communities,
particularly those who are vulnerable

SBC : Priorities

A Vibrant Town:

Improve the economy and encourage financial resilience
Regenerate the town centre and neighbourhoods

A Quality Environment

Provide affordable homes and housing growth

Help people feel safe

An Excellent Council

Deliver value for money
Putting customers first

Consultation: N/A

Legal: N/A

Financial: e Only as referenced in the report
Human N/A

Resource:

Risk e Only as referenced in the report.
Management:

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



	Agenda
	2 Minutes - 30 June 2014
	3 Quarterly Update
	Quaterly Update - ERPA (implications)


